



Calhoun: The NPS Institutional Archive

Theses and Dissertations

Thesis Collection

1990-06

Multidimensional spectral estimation using iterative methods

Wester, Roderick C.

Monterey, California. Naval Postgraduate School

http://hdl.handle.net/10945/30666



Calhoun is a project of the Dudley Knox Library at NPS, furthering the precepts and goals of open government and government transparency. All information contained herein has been approved for release by the NPS Public Affairs Officer.

> Dudley Knox Library / Naval Postgraduate School 411 Dyer Road / 1 University Circle Monterey, California USA 93943

http://www.nps.edu/library



NAVAL POSTGRADUATE SCHOOL Monterey, California







THESIS

MULTIDIMENSIONAL SPECTRAL ESTIMATION USING ITERATIVE METHODS

by

Roderick C. Wester

June 1990

Thesis Advisor: Co-Advisor: Charles W. Therrien Murali Tummala

91 6 14 054

Approved for public release; distribution is unlimited.



UNCLASSIFIED OF THIS DACE

BEDORT DOCUMENTATION DACE Form Approved					
				OMB No 0704-0188	
1a REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION UNCLASSIFIED		16 RESTRICTIVE A			
2a. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION AUTHORITY		3. DISTRIBUTION	AVAILABILITY OF	REPORT	
26. DECLASSIFICATION / DOWNGRADING SCHEDULE		Approved for public release; distribution is unlimited			
4. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION REPORT NUMBE	R(S)	5. MONITORING C	ORGANIZATION RE	PORT NU	MBER(S)
6a. NAME OF PERFORMING ORGANIZATION	6b OFFICE SYMBOL	7a. NAME OF MO	NITORING ORGAN	IZATION	
Naval Postgraduate School	EC	Naval Postgraduate School			001
6c. ADDRESS (City, State, and ZIP Code)		7b. ADDRESS (City, State, and ZIP Code)			
Monter e y, California 93943-5000		Monterey, California 93943-5000			
8a NAME OF FUNDING/SPONSORING ORGANIZATION	8b. OFFICE SYMBOL (If applicable)	9 PROCUREMENT INSTRUMENT IDENTIFICATION NUMBER			ION NUMBER
8c. ADDRESS (City, State, and ZIP Code)		10 SOURCE OF FUNDING NUMBERS			
		PROGRAM ELEMENT NO	PROJECT NO	TASK NO	WORK UNIT ACCESSION NO
11 TITLE (Include Security Classification)					
MULTIDIMENSIONAL AUTOREGRE	ESSIVE SPECTR	AL ESTIMAT	TION USING	G ITEN	RATIVE METHODS
12 PERSONAL AUTHOR(S)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
WESTER, Roderick C.				Den les	PACE COUNT
13a TYPE OF REPORT 13b TIME CC Master's Thesis FROM	14 DATE OF REPOR	RI (Year, Month, I	Day) IS		
16 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTATION The views expressed in this thesis are those of the				~ 17	
author and do not reflect ment of Defense or the U.S	the official 5. Government	policy or	position	n of t	the Depart-
17 COSATI CODES	18 SUBJECT TERMS (Continue on reverse	e if necessary and	identify I	by block number)
FIELD GROUP SUB-GROUP	Autoregress Covariance	ssive Spectral Estimation; e method			
					···
dimensional autoregressive (AR) spectral estimation. An iterative algorithm for the solution of toeplitz block-toeplitz matrix equations is presented. This leads to a fast solution of the 2-D normal equation compared with direct inversion of the autocorrelation matrix. The covariance method is used to estimate the autocorrelation function. Because the resulting matrix is not toeplitz block-toeplitz, a modified iterative algorithm is presented. Quarter-plane (QP) and nonsymmetric half-plane (NSHP) support are used, as well as combined quadrant (CQ) averaging. Results of computer simulation show that in some cases a single iteration is sufficient to produce an acceptable spectral estimate. Because the AR parameters are estimated from previous values, this suggests the possibility to estimate spectral densities of slowly varying random processes.					
20 DISTRIBUTION AVAILABILITY OF ABSTRACT		INCI.ASS	ισκή της εία στη της της της της της της της της της τ		
22a NAME OF RESPONSIBLE INDIVIDUAL THERRIEN, Charles		226 TELEPHONE (# 408-646-	nclude Area Code; 3347) 22c OF EC/	FICE SYMBOL TI
DD Form 1473, JUN 86	Previous editions are o	obsolete	SECURITY O	LASSIFICA	TION OF THIS PAGE
	S/N 0102-LF-0	14-6603	UNCL	LASSIF	FIED

0102-	·LF-	0	14	-	e

Approved for public release; distribution is unlimited.

Multidimensional Spectral Estimation Using Iterative Methods

by

Roderick C. Wester Lieutenant, United States Navy B.S.M.E., Massachusetts Institute of Technology, 1984

> Submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of

MASTER OF SCIENCE IN ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING

from the



ii

ABSTRACT

This thesis treats the topic of multidimensional autoregressive (AR) spectral estimation. An iterative algorithm for the solution of toeplitz block-toeplitz matrix equations is presented. This leads to a fast solution of the 2-D normal equation compared with direct inversion of the autocorrelation matrix.

The covariance method is used to estimate the autocorrelation function. Because the resulting autocorrelation matrix is not toeplitz block-toeplitz, a modified iterative algorithm is presented. Quarter-plane (QP) and nonsymmetric half-plane (NSHP) support are used, as well as combined quadrant (CQ) averaging.

Results of computer simulation show that in some cases a single iteration is sufficient to produce an acceptable spectral estimate. Because the AR parameters are estimated from previous values, this suggests the possibility to estimate spectral densities of slowly varying random processes.

Accession For NTIS GRA&I DTIC TAB Unannounced Justification By. Distribution/ Availability Codes Avail and/or D1st Spectril

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. INTRO	DDUCTION	1	
Α.	POWER SPECTRAL DENSITY		
B.	AUTOREGRESSIVE SPECTRAL ESTIMATION	3	
	1. Quarter-Plane Support	5	
	2. Nonsymmetric Half-Plane Support	7	
II. SOLU	TION OF NORMAL EQUATION USING ITERATION	9	
Α.	QUARTER-PLANE SUPPORT	10	
B.	NONSYMMETRIC HALF-PLANE SUPPORT	15	
III. COV	ARIANCE METHOD	16	
A .	QUARTER-PLANE SUPPORT	18	
B .	NSHP SUPPORT	22	
C.	COMBINED-QUADRANT METHOD	23	
IV. RESU	JLTS OF ITERATIVE SPECTRAL ESTIMATION	25	
V. CONC	CLUSIONS	33	

4

LIST OF REFERENCES	35
INITIAL DISTRIBUTION LIST	36

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1. AR model excited by white noise	4
Figure 2. QP support in first quadrant	6
Figure 3. NSHP support	8
Figure 4. QP support used to estimate autocorrelation matrix	19
Figure 5. Spectral estimates of 16x16 data set with 10 dB SNR	27
Figure 6. Spectral estimates of 16x16 data set with 0 dB SNR	29
Figure 7. Spectral estimates of 8x8 data set with 10 dB SNR	30
Figure 8. Spectral estimate of 8x8 data set with 0 dB SNR	32

I. INTRODUCTION

Estimating the power spectrum associated with a 2-D random process is important in a number of applications. In digital image processing, for example, Wiener filtering may be used to solve image restoration problems in which a signal is degraded by additive random noise [Ref. 1]. The frequency response of a noncausal Wiener filter requires knowledge of the spectral contents of the signal and background noise. Another example is an array of sensors. The frequency wave number spectrum generated from such an array contains information about the signal source and direction of arrival.

Various methods of spectral estimation are discussed in the literature [Refs. 1, 2, 3]. This thesis treats the topic of autoregressive (AR) spectral estimation. Because this method is known to produce high resolution spectral estimates with a small data set, it has attracted considerable interest [Refs. 4, 5, 6, 7].

Determining estimates of AR parameters requires the solution of a set of normal equations. This in turn requires the inversion of an NxN autocorrelation matrix. Direct inversion of the autocorrelation matrix requires $O(N^3)$ multiplications, which is computationally intensive for large N. An iterative method is presented in this thesis which reduces the number of multiplications significantly.

This thesis is organized into five chapters. The remainder of this chapter is devoted to defining the power spectral density and the resulting forms of the normal equation when quarter-plane (QP) and nonsymmetric half-plane (NSHP) support are used. Chapter II develops an iterative solution to the normal equation for both QP and NSHP support which assumes the autocorrelation matrix is toeplitz block-toeplitz. Chapter III discusses the use of the covariance method to estimate the autocorrelation matrix. Because the resulting autocorrelation matrix for the covariance method is not toeplitz block-toeplitz, a modification of the iterative solution presented in Chapter II is developed. Additionally, the technique of combined-quadrant (CQ) averaging is introduced in this chapter. Results obtained from using QP and NSHP support, as well as CQ averaging, to estimate spectral densities are presented in Chapter IV. Conclusions and recommendations for future study are given in Chapter V.

A. POWER SPECTRAL DENSITY

A 2-D random process is a discrete function $x(n_1,n_2)$ such that, for each coordinate pair (n_1,n_2) , the value of $x(n_1,n_2)$ is a random variable. The power spectral density $P_x(\omega_1,\omega_2)$ of a wide-sense stationary random process is the Fourier transform of the autocorrelation function,

$$P_{x}(\omega_{1},\omega_{2}) = \sum_{l_{1}=-\infty}^{\infty} \sum_{l_{2}=-\infty}^{\infty} R_{x}(l_{1},l_{2})e^{-j\omega_{1}l_{1}}e^{-j\omega_{2}l_{2}}$$
(1-1)

where

$$R_{x}(l_{1},l_{2}) = E[x(n_{1},n_{2})x^{*}(n_{1}-l_{1},n_{2}-l_{2})], \qquad (1-2)$$

and $E[\cdot]$ denotes the statistical expectation. Conventional methods of estimating the spectral density include the correlogram. In this method, an estimate of the

autocorrelation function $\hat{R}_x(l_1, l_2)$ is substituted into (1-1), where $\hat{R}_x(l_1, l_2)$ is an estimate such as

$$\hat{R}_{x}(l_{1},l_{2}) = \frac{1}{N_{1}N_{2}} \sum_{l_{1}=0}^{N_{1}-l_{1}-1} \sum_{l_{2}=0}^{N_{1}-l_{1}-1} x(n_{1},n_{2})x^{*}(n_{1}-l_{1},n_{2}-l_{2}), \qquad (1-3)$$

and N_1N_2 is the number of points in the random process. The modern methods of spectral estimation include representing the random process with an autoregressive model. The model parameters are then used to estimate the spectral density. This is the method employed in this thesis.

B. AUTOREGRESSIVE SPECTRAL ESTIMATION

Autoregressive spectral estimation assumes the random process $x(n_1,n_2)$ is the response of an AR model excited by white noise $w(n_1,n_2)$ with variance σ^2 , as shown in Figure 1. To estimate the AR parameters $a(n_1,n_2)$, the system is expressed as a recursive difference equation given by

$$x(n_1, n_2) = -\sum_{(i, j)} \sum_{e \in A} a(i, j)^T x(n_1 - i, n_2 - j) + w(n_1, n_2)$$
(1-4)

where A is the region of support over which a(i,j) have non-zero values. The frequencyresponse function of the AR model is expressed as

$$H(\omega_1, \omega_2) = \frac{1}{1 + \sum_{(k_1, k_2)} \sum_{e A} a(k_1, k_2) e^{-j\omega_1 k_1} e^{-j\omega_2 k_2}}$$
(1-5)



Figure 1. AR model excited by white noise

The AR power spectral estimate $\hat{P}_{s}(\omega_1, \omega_2)$ is given by

$$\hat{P}_{x}(\omega_{1},\omega_{2}) = |H(\omega_{1},\omega_{2})|^{2}P_{x}$$
(1-6)

where P_w is the spectral density of the white noise input. The input has a constant power spectrum of amplitude σ^2 . Therefore (1-6) can be written as

$$\hat{P}_{x}(\omega_{1},\omega_{2}) = \frac{\sigma^{2}}{\left|1 + \sum_{(n_{1}, n_{2})\in A} \sum_{(n_{1}, n_{2})e^{-j\omega_{1}n_{1}}e^{-j\omega_{2}n_{1}}\right|^{2}}$$
(1-7)

To estimate the AR parameters, multiply both sides of (1-4) by $x^*(n_1-l_1,n_2-l_2)$ and take the statistical expectation [Ref. 2]. This leads to the following normal equation

$$\sum_{(i,j)} \sum_{\in A} a(i,j) R_x(l_1 - i, l_2 - j) = R_x(l_1, l_2).$$
(1-8)

The structure of the normal equation depends upon the shape of A. Two regions of support will be considered in the following, quarter-plane and nonsymmetric half-plane support.

1. Quarter-Plane Support

The region A is said to have quarter-plane support when a(i,j) has non-zero values in one quadrant only, as shown in Figure 2, which illustrates quarter plane support in the first quadrant. In this case the normal equation becomes

$$\sum_{\substack{i=0\\(i,j)\neq(0,0)}}^{P_1-1} \sum_{\substack{j=0\\x\in(0,1)}}^{P_2-1} a(i,j)R_x(l_1-i,l_2-j) = R_x(l_1,l_2)$$
(1-9)

where $l_1=0,1,2,...,P_1-1$, $l_2=0,1,2,...,P_2-1$, and P_1 and P_2 are the dimensions of A as shown in Figure 2. If it is assumed that a(0,0) = 1, then (1.9) can be written in block-matrix form as

$$\begin{bmatrix} R_{0} & R_{-1} & R_{-2} & \cdots & R_{-P_{1}+1} \\ R_{1} & R_{0} & R_{-1} & \cdots & R_{-P_{1}+2} \\ R_{2} & R_{1} & R_{0} & \cdots & R_{-P_{1}+3} \\ \vdots & \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ R_{P_{1}-1} & R_{P_{1}-2} & R_{P_{1}-3} & \cdots & R_{0} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} a_{0} \\ a_{1} \\ a_{2} \\ \vdots \\ a_{P_{1}-1} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} S^{(0)} \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ \vdots \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}$$
(1-10)



Figure 2. QP support in first quadrant

where each block R_k is given by

$$R_{k} = R_{-k}^{T} = \begin{cases} R(k,0) & R(k,-1) & \cdots & R(k,-P_{2}+1) \\ R(k,1) & R(k,0) & \cdots & R(k,-P_{2}+2) \\ \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ R(k,P_{2}-1) & R(k,P_{2}-2) & \cdots & R(k,0) \end{cases},$$
(1-11)

$$a_k = [a(k,0) \ a(k,1) \ a(k,2) \ \cdots \ a(k,P_2-1)]^T,$$
 (1-12)

and

$$S^{(0)} = [\sigma^2 \ 0 \ \cdots \ 0]^T.$$
 (1-13)

Note that the matrix R has a toeplitz block-toeplitz structure. That is, the blocks along the diagonals are equal, and the elements along the diagonals within the blocks are also equal.

2. Nonsymmetric Half-Plane Support

When a(i,j) has non-zero values in a region of the form shown in Figure 3, the region A is referred to as nonsymmetric half-plane (NSHP) support. In this case the normal equation becomes

$$\sum_{j=1}^{L_2 * P_j - 1} a(0,j) R_x(l_1, l_2 - j) + \sum_{\substack{i=1 \ (i,j) \neq (0,0)}}^{P_1 - 1} \sum_{j=L_1}^{P_2 - 1} a(i,j) R_x(l_1 - i, l_2 - j) = R_x(l_1, l_2)$$
(1-14)

where

$$l_{1} = 0, 1, 2, ..., P_{1} - 1,$$

$$l_{2} = \begin{cases} 0, 1, 2, ..., L_{2} + P_{2} - 1, & \text{for } l_{1} = 0, \\ L_{2}, L_{2} + 1, L_{2} + 2, ..., L_{2} + P_{2} - 1, & \text{for } l_{1} \neq 0. \end{cases}$$

and P_1 and P_2 are the dimensions of A, and L_2 is a negative number as defined in Figure 3. Let a(0,0) = 1. Then (1-14) may be written in matrix form as



Figure 3. NSHP support

$$\begin{bmatrix} \vec{R}_{0} & \vec{R}_{-1} & \vec{R}_{-2} & \cdots & \vec{R}_{-P_{1}+1} \\ \vec{R}_{1} & R_{0} & R_{-1} & \cdots & R_{-P_{1}+2} \\ \vec{R}_{2} & R_{1} & R_{0} & \cdots & R_{-P_{1}+3} \\ \vdots & \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ \vec{R}_{P_{1}-1} & R_{P_{1}-2} & R_{P_{1}-3} & \cdots & R_{0} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \vec{a}_{0} \\ a_{1} \\ a_{2} \\ \vdots \\ a_{P_{1}-1} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \vec{S}^{(0)} \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ \vdots \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}$$
(1-15)

where the various blocks \bar{R}_0 , \bar{R}_k , and R_k are given by

$$\vec{R}_{0} = \begin{bmatrix} R(0,0) & R(0,-1) & \cdots & R(0,-L_{2}-P_{2}+1) \\ R(0,1) & R(0,0) & \cdots & R(0,-L_{2}-P_{2}+2) \\ \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ R(0,L_{2}+P_{2}-1) & R(0,L_{2}+P_{2}-2) & \cdots & R(0,0) \end{bmatrix},$$
(1-16)

$$\bar{R}_{k} = \bar{R}_{-k}^{T} = \begin{bmatrix} R(k, -L_{2}) & R(k, -L_{2}-1) & \cdots & R(k, -L_{2}-P_{2}+1) \\ R(k, -L_{2}+1) & R(k, -L_{2}) & \cdots & R(k, -L_{2}-P_{2}+2) \\ \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ R(k, -L_{2}+P_{2}-1) & R(k, -L_{2}+P_{2}-2) & \cdots & R(k, 0) \end{bmatrix}, \quad (1-17)$$

$$R_{k} = R_{-k}^{T} = \begin{bmatrix} R(k,0) & R(k,-1) & \cdots & R(k,-P_{2}+1) \\ R(k,1) & R(k,0) & \cdots & R(k,-P_{2}+2) \\ \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ R(k,P_{2}-1) & R(k,P_{2}-2) & \cdots & R(k,0) \end{bmatrix},$$
(1-18)

the model parameters in vector form are

$$\tilde{a}_0 = [a(0,0) \ a(0,1) \ a(0,2) \ \cdots \ a(0,L_2 + P_2 - 1)]^T,$$
 (1-19)

$$a_{k} = [a(k,L_{2}) \ a(k,L_{2}+1) \ a(k,L_{2}+2) \ \cdots \ a(k,L_{2}+P_{2}-1)]^{T}, \qquad (1-20)$$

and

$$\tilde{S}^{(0)} = \begin{bmatrix} \sigma^2 & 0 & 0 & \cdots & 0 \end{bmatrix}^T.$$
(1-21)

The blocks of the autocorrelation matrix have three structures given by $\tilde{R_0}$, $\tilde{R_k}$, and R_k . Except for the upper and left borders, the matrix is block-toeplitz with toeplitz blocks. Quarter-plane support is a special case of NSHP support with $L_2 = 0$.

II. SOLUTION OF NORMAL EQUATION USING ITERATION

The solution of the normal equation requires inversion of the autocorrelation matrix. As previously stated, direct inversion becomes increasingly computationally intensive for larger matrices. However, the toeplitz block-toeplitz structure of the autocorrelation matrix enables the inversion of the matrix via an iterative method which employs successive partitioning of the normal equation [Ref. 8].

A. QUARTER-PLANE SUPPORT

To develop the iterative algorithm we first divide both sides of (1-10) by σ^2 . This results in the modified normal equation

$$\begin{bmatrix} R_{0} & R_{-1} & R_{-2} & \cdots & R_{-P_{1}+1} \\ R_{1} & R_{0} & R_{-1} & \cdots & R_{-P_{1}+2} \\ R_{2} & R_{1} & R_{0} & \cdots & R_{-P_{1}+3} \\ \vdots & \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ R_{P_{1}-1} & R_{P_{1}-2} & R_{P_{1}-3} & \cdots & R_{0} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} a_{0} \\ a_{1} \\ a_{2} \\ \vdots \\ a_{P_{1}-1} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} S^{(0)} \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ \vdots \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}$$
(2-1)

where $S^{(0)} = \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 0 & 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}^T$. The normal equation is then partitioned as follows.

$$\begin{bmatrix} R_{0} & R_{-1} & R_{-2} & \cdots & \vdots & R_{-P_{1}+1} \\ R_{1} & R_{0} & R_{-1} & \cdots & \vdots & R_{-P_{1}+2} \\ R_{2} & R_{1} & R_{0} & \cdots & \vdots & R_{-P_{1}+3} \\ \vdots & \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots & \vdots \\ \cdots & \cdots & \cdots & \cdots & \cdots & \cdots \\ R_{P_{1}-1} & R_{P_{1}-2} & R_{P_{1}-3} & \cdots & \vdots & R_{0} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} a_{0} \\ a_{1} \\ a_{2} \\ \vdots \\ \cdots \\ a_{P_{1}-1} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} S^{(0)} \\ 0 \\ 0 \\ \vdots \\ \cdots \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}.$$
(2-2)

Equation (2-2) can be expressed as

$$\begin{bmatrix} G_{1} & H_{1} \\ H_{1}^{T} & R_{0} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \gamma_{1} \\ a_{P_{1}-1} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \varphi_{1} \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}$$
(2-3)

where

$$G_{1} = \begin{bmatrix} R_{0} & R_{-1} & R_{-2} & \cdots & R_{-P_{1}+2} \\ R_{1} & R_{0} & R_{-1} & \cdots & R_{-P_{1}+3} \\ R_{2} & R_{1} & R_{0} & \cdots & R_{-P_{1}+4} \\ \vdots & \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ R_{P_{1}+2} & R_{P_{1}-3} & R_{P_{1}-4} & \cdots & R_{0} \end{bmatrix},$$
(2-4)

$$H_{1}^{T} = [R_{P_{1}-1} R_{P_{1}-2} R_{P_{1}-3} \cdots R_{1}], \qquad (2-5)$$

$$\gamma_{1} = [a_{0}^{T} a_{1}^{T} a_{2}^{T} \cdots a_{P,-2}^{T}]^{T}, \qquad (2-6)$$

and

$$\mathbf{\phi}_{1} = [1 \ 0 \ 0 \ \cdots \ 0]^{T}. \tag{2-7}$$

Both sides of (2-3) are then premultiplied by a matrix F_1 which results in

$$\gamma_{1} = G_{1}^{-1} [\phi_{1} - H_{1} a_{p_{1}-1}]$$

$$a_{p_{1}-1} = -R_{0}^{-1} H_{1}^{T} \gamma_{1}$$
(2-8)

where

$$F_{1} = \begin{bmatrix} G_{1}^{-1} & H_{1} \\ H_{1}^{T} & R_{0}^{-1} \end{bmatrix}.$$
 (2-9)

These last equations suggest an iterative solution. In particular, (2-8) may be expressed as

$$\gamma_{1}^{(k)} = G_{1}^{-1} [\phi_{1} - H_{1} a_{p_{1}-1}^{(k-1)}]$$

$$a_{p_{1}-1}^{(k)} = -R_{0}^{-1} H_{1}^{T} \gamma_{1}^{(k-1)} .$$
(2-10)

Equation (2-10) requires the inversion of the submatrix G_1 , which is not much smaller than the autocorrelation matrix, and hence requires nearly as many multiplications to invert. Therefore, G_1 , γ_1 , and ϕ_1 may be further partitioned to yield

$$\begin{bmatrix} G_2 & H_2 \\ H_2^T & R_0 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \gamma_2 \\ a_{P_1-2} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \varphi_2 \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}$$
(2-11)

where

$$G_{2} = \begin{bmatrix} R_{0} & R_{-1} & R_{-2} & \cdots & R_{-P_{1}+3} \\ R_{1} & R_{0} & R_{-1} & \cdots & R_{-P_{1}+4} \\ R_{2} & R_{1} & R_{0} & \cdots & R_{-P_{1}+5} \\ \vdots & \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ R_{P_{1}-3} & R_{P_{1}-4} & R_{P_{1}-5} & \cdots & R_{2} \end{bmatrix}, \qquad (2-12)$$

$$H_2^T = [R_{P_1-1} R_{P_1-2} R_{P_1-3} \cdots R_2], \qquad (2-13)$$

$$\gamma_2 = [a_0^T a_1^T a_2^T \cdots a_{P_1-3}^T]^T, \qquad (2-14)$$

and

$$\varphi_2 = [1 \ 0 \ 0 \ \cdots \ 0]^T. \tag{2-15}$$

Premultiplication of both sides of (2-11) by the matrix F_2 results in

$$\gamma_2 = G_2^{-1} [\phi_2 - H_2 \ a_{p_1 - 2}]$$

$$a_{p_1 - 2} = -R_0^{-1} H_2^T \gamma_2$$
(2-16)

where

$$F_{2} = \begin{bmatrix} G_{2}^{-1} & H_{2} \\ H_{2}^{T} & R_{0}^{-1} \end{bmatrix}.$$
 (2-17)

An iterative solution to (2-16) can then be formulated as

$$\gamma_{2}^{(k)} = G_{2}^{-1} [\varphi_{2} - H_{2} \ a_{p_{1}-2}^{(k-1)}]$$

$$a_{p_{2}-2}^{(k)} = -R_{0}^{-1} H_{2}^{T} \gamma_{2}^{(k-1)} .$$
(2-18)

Since (2-18) requires the inversion of submatrix G_2 , which may be large, the matrices G_2 , γ_2 , and ϕ_2 are further partitioned. Repetitive partitioning of the normal equation finally results in

$$\begin{bmatrix} G_{P_{i}-1} & H_{P_{i}-1} \\ H_{P_{i}-1}^{T} & R_{0} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \gamma_{P_{i}-1} \\ a_{1} \end{bmatrix} - \begin{bmatrix} \varphi_{P_{i}-1} \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}$$
(2-19)

where $G_{P_1-1} = R_0$, $H_{P_1-1}^T = R_1$, $\gamma_{P_1-1} = a_0$, and $\varphi_{P_1-1} = S^{(0)}$. Premultiplication of

(2-19) by the matrix $F_{P,-1}$ yields an iterative solution

$$a_0^{(k)} = R_0^{-1} [S^{(0)} - R_{-1} a_1^{(k-1)}]$$

$$a_1^{(k)} = -R_0^{-1} R_1 a_0^{(k-1)}$$
(2-20)

where

$$F_{P_{1}-1} = \begin{bmatrix} R_{0}^{-1} & R_{-1} \\ R_{1} & R_{0}^{-1} \end{bmatrix}.$$
 (2-21)

Combining all of the iterative solutions from the successive levels of partitioning results in the final algorithm

$$a_{0}^{(k)} = a_{0}^{(0)} - R_{0}^{-1} \sum_{i=1}^{P_{1}-1} R_{-i} a_{i}^{(k-1)}$$

$$a_{j}^{(k)} = -R_{0}^{-1} \sum_{\substack{i=0\\i\neq j}}^{P_{1}-1} R_{j-i} a_{i}^{(k-1)}$$
(2-22)

where a_i are $P_2 x 1$ vectors of AR parameters, $a_0^{(0)} = R_0^{-1} S^{(0)}$, $a_j^{(0)} = R_0^{-1} R_j a_0^{(0)}$, j =

1,2,..., P_1 -1, and k is the index of iteration. Solution of (2-22) requires $O(P_1^2 P_2^2 K)$ multiplications where K is the number of iterations required for convergence to the true parameters.

B. NONSYMMETRIC HALF-PLANE SUPPORT

As noted previously, the autocorrelation matrix which results from NSHP support consists of three different types of blocks. The derivation of the iteration follows the same procedure of succesive partitioning of the normal equation as that for the QP support. However, the assymmetry of the autocorrelation matrix results in a slightly different final recursion given by

$$\bar{a}_{0}^{(k)} = \bar{a}_{0}^{(0)} - \bar{R}_{0}^{-1} \sum_{i=1}^{P_{1}-1} \bar{R}_{-i} a_{i}^{(k-1)}$$

$$a_{j}^{(k)} = -R_{0}^{-1} \bar{R}_{j} a_{0}^{(k-1)} - R_{0}^{-1} \sum_{\substack{i=1\\i\neq j}}^{P_{1}-1} R_{j-i} a_{i}^{(k-1)}$$
(2-23)

where a_i are $P_2 x_1$ vectors of AR parameters, $\bar{a}_0^{(0)} = \bar{R}_0^{-1} \bar{S}_0^{(0)}$, $a_j^{(0)} = \bar{R}_0^{-1} \bar{R}_j \bar{a}_0^{(0)}$, $j = 1, 2, ..., P_1$ -1, and k is the index of iteration. As with (2-22), the solution of (2-23) requires $O(P_1^2 P_2^2 K)$ mutiplications to converge to the true values of the parameters.

III. COVARIANCE METHOD

The iterative solutions to the normal equations given in (2-22) and (2-23) assume that the autocorrelation matrix is known and that it is toeplitz block-toeplitz. In general, however, the autocorrelation matrix must be estimated from the available data. Assuming a 2-D AR model, the covariance method provides a means to estimate the autocorrelation matrix and may be formulated in terms of linear prediction.

In the 2-D linear prediction problem, the error between the true value of a random process $x(n_1,n_2)$ and the estimated value $\hat{x}(n_1,n_2)$ is given by

$$e(n_1, n_2) = x(n_1, n_2) - \hat{x}(n_1, n_2)$$
(3-1)

$$e(n_1, n_2) = x(n_1, n_2) + \sum_{\substack{(i,j) \ \neq \ (0,0)}} \sum_{\substack{\epsilon = A \\ (i,j) \ \neq \ (0,0)}} a(i,j) x(n_1 - i, n_2 - j) \quad .$$
(3-2)

The objective of the covariance method is to minimize the sum of the actual squared errors from a particular set of these terms [Ref. 1]. Let a(0,0) = 1. Then (3-2) can be written as

$$e(n_1, n_2) = \sum_{(i,j)} \sum_{e \mid A} a(i,j) x(n_1 - i, n_2 - j) .$$
 (3-3)

This last equation can be represented in vector form as

$$e = Xa \tag{3-4}$$

where the rows of the matrix X are the points of the random process within the region A as the filter is moved over the data. In the covariance method the filter is positioned so that it never falls even partially outside of the available data. The elements of the vector e are the error between the observed and the predicted values of the random process for each position of the filter. Premultiplication of both sides of (3-4) by X^T and application of the the orthogonality principle results in the following normal equation

$$Ra = S, \tag{3-5}$$

where $R = X^T X$, $S = X^T e = [S^{(0)T} \ 0 \ \dots \ 0]^T$, and $S^{(0)} = [\sigma^2 \ 0 \ \dots \ 0]^T$. The structure of *R* depends upon the shape of the region *A*. Quarter-plane and NSHP support are discussed below.

A. QUARTER-PLANE SUPPORT

If the region A is a quarter-plane in the first quadrant, the matrix X becomes

$$X = \begin{cases} x_{n_{1},n_{2}} \\ \vdots \\ x_{n_{1}+N_{1}-P_{1},n_{2}} \\ x_{n_{1},n_{2}+1} \\ \vdots \\ x_{n_{1}+N_{1}-P_{1},n_{2}+1} \\ \vdots \\ x_{n_{1},n_{2}+N_{2}-P_{2}} \\ \vdots \\ x_{n_{1}+N_{1}-P_{1},n_{1}+N_{2}-P_{2}} \end{cases}$$
(3-6)

where each row is given by

$$x_{p,q}^{T} = \begin{cases} x(n_{1}+p,n_{2}+q) \\ \vdots \\ x(n_{1}+p,n_{2}+q-P_{2}+1) \\ x(n_{1}+p-1,n_{2}+q) \\ \vdots \\ x(n_{1}+p-1,n_{2}+q-P_{2}+1) \\ \vdots \\ x(n_{1}+p-P_{1}+1,n_{2}+q) \\ \vdots \\ x(n_{1}+p-P_{1}+1,n_{2}+q-P_{2}+1) \end{cases} , \qquad (3-7)$$

and N_1 and N_2 are the number of columns and rows in the 2-D random process, respectively, and P_1 , P_2 are the dimensions of the region A as shown in Figure 4.



Figure 4. QP support used to estimate autocorrelation matrix

The sample autocorrelation matrix then becomes

$$R = \begin{bmatrix} R_{0,0} & R_{0,1} & \cdots & R_{0,P_1-1} \\ R_{1,0} & R_{1,1} & \cdots & R_{1,P_1-1} \\ \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ R_{P_1-1,0} & R_{P_1-1,1} & \cdots & R_{P_1-1,P_1-1} \end{bmatrix}$$
(3-8)

where $R_{m,n} = R_{n,m}^{T}$. The matrix R is symmetric; however, it is not toeplitz block-toeplitz. Nevertheless, an iterative solution to estimate the AR parameters may still be obtained as follows [Ref. 8].

The first step is to average the blocks along the main diagonal of the autocorrelation matrix. Refer to this block as R_{avg} . From R_{avg} a toeplitz approximation T of the diagonal blocks is formed. One approximation is given in Ref. 9, where the diagonal elements of T, t(i), are given by

$$t(i) = \frac{1}{P_2 - i} \sum_{j=0}^{P_2 - i - 1} R_{avg}(i+j,j)$$
(3-9)

where $i = 0,1,...P_2-1$. The normal equation is then successively partitioned as shown previously.

The first partitioning of the normal equation, similiar to that in (2-3), leads to

$$\gamma_{1}^{(k)} = G_{1}^{-1} [\varphi_{1} - H_{1} a_{p_{1}-1}^{(k-1)}]$$

$$a_{P_{1}-1}^{(k)} = -R_{P_{1}-1,P_{1}-1}^{-1} H_{1}^{T} \gamma_{1}^{(k-1)}.$$
(3-10)

The block R_{P_i-1,P_i-1} may be expressed as

$$R_{P,-1,P,-1} = T + D_{P,-1,P,-1} \tag{3-11}$$

where D_{P_1-1,P_1-1} is the difference between the toeplitz approximation T and R_{P_1-1,P_1-1} . Substituting (3-11) into (3-10) leads to

.....

$$\gamma_{1}^{(k)} = G_{1}^{-1} [\phi_{1} - H_{1} \ a_{P_{1}-1}^{(k-1)}]$$

$$a_{P_{1}-1}^{(k)} = -T^{-1} D_{P_{1}-1,P_{1}-1} a_{P_{1}-1}^{(k-1)} - T^{-1} H_{1}^{T} \gamma_{1}^{(k-1)} .$$
(3-12)

Subsequent partitioning of the normal equation then results in

$$\gamma_{P_{1}-1}^{(k)} = G_{P_{1}-1}^{-1} [\phi_{P_{1}-1} - H_{P_{1}-1} a_{1}^{(k-1)}]$$

$$a_{1}^{(k)} = -R_{1,1}^{-1} H_{P_{1}-1}^{T} \gamma_{P_{1}-1}^{(k-1)}$$
(3-13)

where $\gamma_{P_1-1} = a_0, G_{P_1-1} = R_{0,0}$, and $H_{P_1-1} = R_{0,1}$. The submatrix $R_{1,1}$ can be expressed

as

$$R_{1,1} = T + D_{1,1} , \qquad (3-14)$$

and $R_{0,0}$ can be expressed as

$$R_{00} = T + D_{00} . (3-15)$$

Substituting (3-14) and (3-15) into (3-13) gives

$$\gamma_{P_{1}-1}^{(k)} = G_{P_{1}-1}^{-1} [\phi_{P_{1}-1} - H_{P_{1}-1} a_{1}^{(k-1)}]$$

$$a_{1}^{(k)} = -T^{-1} D_{1,1} a_{1}^{(k-1)} - T^{-1} H_{1}^{T} \gamma_{P_{1}-1}^{(k-1)}.$$
(3-16)

Finally, combining all of the succesive iterations leads to

$$a_{0}^{(k)} = a_{0}^{(0)} - T^{-1} D_{0,0} a_{0}^{(k-1)} - T^{-1} \sum_{i=1}^{P_{1}-1} R_{0,i} a_{i}^{(k-1)}$$

$$a_{j}^{(k)} = -T^{-1} D_{j,j} a_{j}^{(k-1)} - T^{-1} \sum_{i=0}^{P_{1}-1} R_{j,i} a_{i}^{(k-1)}$$

$$i \neq j$$
(3-17)

where $a_0^{(0)} = T^{-1}S^{(0)}$, $a_j^{(0)} = T^{-1}R_{j,0}a_0^{(0)}$, and $j = 1, 2, ..., P_1$ -1. Equation (3-17) is then iterated to solve for the model parameters in (3-5).

B. NSHP SUPPORT

An iteration similiar to that used for QP support may be used for NSHP support. Use of NSHP support to estimate the autocorrelation matrix results in a matrix with an asymmetric structure similiar to that of (1-15). The sample autocorrelation matrix can be expressed as

$$R = \begin{bmatrix} \tilde{R}_{0,0} & \tilde{R}_{0,1} & \cdots & \tilde{R}_{0,P_{1}-1} \\ \tilde{R}_{1,0} & R_{1,1} & \cdots & R_{1,P_{1}-1} \\ \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ \tilde{R}_{P_{1}-1,0} & R_{P_{1}-1,1} & \cdots & R_{P_{1}-1,P_{1}-1} \end{bmatrix}.$$
 (3-18)

The dimensions of the blocks along the top and left edges are reduced by a number of rows and columns, respectively, equal to the number $-L_2$ associated with region A.

The development of the iteration begins by forming a toeplitz approximation T of the average of the blocks along the main diagonal of R. The upper-left block is not included in the average, however, because it is not of the same dimension as the other blocks along the diagonal. A separate toeplitz approximation \tilde{T} is determined for this block.

The normal equation is succesively partitioned as discussed previously in sections II.A and II.B. At each stage of the partitioning, the blocks along the main diagonal are expressed as the sum of the toeplitz approximation and a difference matrix. The final form of the algorithm is

$$\tilde{a}_{0}^{(k)} = \tilde{a}_{0}^{(0)} - \tilde{T}^{-1} \tilde{D}_{0,0} \tilde{a}_{0}^{(k-1)} - T^{-1} \sum_{i=1}^{P_{i}-1} R_{0,i} a_{i}^{(k-1)}$$

$$a_{j}^{(k)} = -T^{-1} D_{j,j} a_{j}^{(k-1)} - T^{-1} \tilde{R}_{j,0} \tilde{a}_{0}^{(k-1)} - T^{-1} \sum_{\substack{i=1\\i\neq j}}^{P_{i}-1} R_{j,i} a_{i}^{(k-1)}$$
(3-19)

where $\tilde{a}_{0}^{(0)} = \tilde{T}^{-1} \tilde{S}^{(0)}$, $a_{j}^{(0)} = T^{-1} \tilde{R}_{j,0} \tilde{a}_{0}^{(0)}$, and $j = 1, 2, ..., P_{1} - 1$.

C. COMBINED-QUADRANT METHOD

In deriving the iteration for the quarter-plane case, support in the first quadrant was assumed. However, support in any of the quadrants may have been used without any loss in generality. Due to the hermitian symmetry and toeplitz block-toeplitz property of the autocorrelation matrix, support in the third quadrant results in an identical spectral estimate to that obtained from support in the first quadrant. In general, however, spectral estimates derived from support in the first and second quadrants are different.

Spectral estimates obtained from quarter-plane support often result in contours of constant power spectral density that are elliptical. This means that the frequency estimate in one direction is more accurate than the estimate for the other direction. To mitigate this problem, the following combined-quadrant (CQ) spectral estimate has been suggested [Ref. 10]

$$\hat{P}_{x} = \frac{\sigma^{2}}{\frac{1}{2} \left[\frac{1}{\hat{P}_{x_{1}}} + \frac{1}{\hat{P}_{x_{2}}} \right]}$$
(3-20)

where \hat{P}_{x_i} and \hat{P}_{x_j} are the spectral estimates obtained from QP support in the first and second quadrants, respectively.

It can easily be shown that QP support in the second quadrant results in the following normal equation

$$\begin{bmatrix} R_{0,0} & R_{0,1} & \cdots & R_{0,P_{1}-1} \\ R_{1,0} & R_{1,1} & \cdots & R_{1,P_{1}-1} \\ \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ R_{P_{1}-1,0} & R_{P_{1}-1,1} & \cdots & R_{P_{1}-1,P_{1}-1} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} b_{P_{1}-1} \\ b_{P_{1}-2} \\ \vdots \\ b_{0} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 \\ 0 \\ \vdots \\ S^{(0)} \end{bmatrix}$$
(3-21)

24

where
$$R_{m,n} = R_{n,m}^T$$
, $b_k^T = [b(k,0) \ b(k,1) \ b(k,2) \ \cdots \ b(k,P_2-1)]$, $b(0,0) = 1$, and

 $S^{(0)} = [\sigma^2 \ 0 \ \cdots \ 0]^T$. The autocorrelation matrix is identical to that obtained using QP support in the first quadrant. However, the AR parameters b_i are not the same in general.

The estimation of the AR parameters is obtained by an iteration similiar to (3-17). The difference is the manner in which the normal equation is partitioned. Rather than beginning the partitioning at the lower-right corner and continuing toward the opposite corner, as previously shown with support in the first quadrant, the partitioning begins with the upper-left corner and continues to the opposite corner. The toeplitz approximation Tis the same as that used for support in the first quadrant. The iteration is therefore

$$b_{0}^{(k)} = b_{0}^{(0)} - T^{-1} D_{P_{1}-1,P_{1}-1} b_{0}^{(k-1)} - T^{-1} \sum_{i=1}^{P_{1}-1} R_{P_{1}-1,P_{1}-1-i} b_{P_{1}-1-i}^{(k-1)}$$

$$b_{j}^{(k)} = -T^{-1} D_{P_{1}-1-j,P_{1}-1-j} b_{j}^{(k-1)} - T^{-1} \sum_{i=1}^{P_{1}-1} R_{P_{1}-1-j,P_{1}-1-i} b_{P_{1}-1-i}^{(k-1)}$$

$$(3-22)$$

where $b_0^{(0)} = T^{-1}S^{(0)}$, $b_j^{(0)} = T^{-1}R_{P_1-1,j}b_0^{(0)}$, and $j = 1, 2, ..., P_1-1$. The CQ method requires

 $O(2P_1^2P_2^2K)$ multiplications to converge to the true parameter values.

IV. RESULTS OF ITERATIVE SPECTRAL ESTIMATION

The performance of the iterative spectral etimation method was investigated by testing its ability to detect multiple sinusoids in white noise. The data was given by

$$x(n_1, n_2) = B_1 \cos(0.125n_1 + 0.125n_2) + B_2 \cos(0.33n_1 + 0.33n_2) + w(n_1, n_2)$$
(4-1)

where B_i are the amplitudes of the sinusoids, and $w(n_1, n_2)$ is a sample function of zero mean white noise with unit variance. The signal-to-noise ratio (SNR) of the random process is defined by [Ref. 1]

$$SNR = \sum_{i=1}^{m} \frac{B_i^2}{\sigma^2}$$
(4-2)

where m is the number of sinusoids present.

Two sizes of data sets were used to evaluate the performance of the iterative spectral estimation method: 16x16 and 8x8. For each size a SNR of 10 dB and 0 dB were used. The SNR was altered by varying the values of B_i while holding σ^2 constant. Comparisons were made between QP and NSHP support and the CQ method.

Spectral estimates of the 16x16 data set with a 10 dB SNR are shown in Figure 5. Best results were obtained for QP support after 12 iterations for $P_1 = P_2 = 4$. The estimated frequencies do not match the true values, and there are many spurious peaks. Other values of P_1 and P_2 failed to produce more accurate results.



.

Figure 5. Spectral estimates of 16x16 data set with 10 dB SNR

Better results were obtained using NSHP support with $P_1=P_2=4$, and $L_2=-2$. After one iteration an acceptable spectral estimate was obtained. The estimated frequencies are closer to the true values, and the spectral peaks are sharp.

The CQ method produced even better results. An acceptable spectral estimate was obtained after a single iteration with $P_1 = P_2 = 3$. The spectral peaks are sharp, and the estimated frequencies are closer to the true values than with NSHP support.

Results of spectral estimation applied to a 0 dB SNR data set of size 16x16 are shown in Figure 6. Meaningful spectral estimates could not be obtained using QP support for any values of P_1 and P_2 . Employment of NSHP support led to a useful spectral estimate after three iterations for $P_1=P_2=4$, and $L_2=-2$. However, the spectral peaks are broad.

The CQ method yielded a useful spectral estimate after one iteration for P_1 and P_2 equal to three. The estimated frequencies are very close to the true values, but the spectral peaks are very broad.

Spectral estimates of a 10 dB SNR data set of size 8x8 are seen in Figure 7. After five iterations QP support produced a mediocre spectral estimate for both P_1 and P_2 equal to four. The estimated frequencies are very close to the true values. However, the presence of spurious peaks makes the spectral estimate very difficult to interpret accurately, in spite of the sharp spectral peaks.

A more nearly-accurate spectral estimate was obtained from NSHP support after a single iteration for $P_1=P_2=4$, and $L_2=-2$. The accuracy of the higher-frequency estimate



Figure 6. Spectral estimates of 16x16 data set with 0 dB SNR



Figure 7. Spectral estimates of 8x8 data set with 10 dB SNR

is very good, whereas the resolution of the lower-frequency estimate is only fair.

The CQ method produced a very accurate spectral estimate after one iteration for P_1 and P_2 equal to three. As seen in the figure, the spectral peaks are very sharp, and the estimated frequencies are very close to the true values.

Only the CQ method produced an acceptable spectral estimate of the 0 dB SNR data set of size 8x8. A meaningful spectral estimate was obtained after a single iteration for P_1 and P_2 equal to three, as seen in Figure 8. The frequency estimates are close to the true values, but the spectral peaks are broad.

Several other cases were tested for different sinusoidal frequencies in white noise. Additionally, the values for the SNR were varied. In all of these cases, the results were consistent with those presented above.



Figure 8. Spectral estimate of 8x8 data set with 0 dB SNR

V. CONCLUSIONS

The results presented in Chapter IV show that high-resolution spectral estimates can be obtained using iterative methods. In several cases, a single iteration was sufficient to produce meaningful results. The net gain is a reduction in the number of computations required to estimate the spectra.

Comparisons of spectral estimates obtained from QP and NSHP support and the CQ method show that the latter produced superior results. Although the CQ method requires $O(2P_1^2P_2^2)$ multiplications to arrive at a solution as compared to $O(P_1^2P_2^2)$ for QP and NSHP support, it requires a smaller region of support. Therefore, the CQ method not only provides spectral estimates of superior resolution to QP and NSHP support, it also accomplishes these results in fewer iterations.

It was observed that the resolution of the spectral estimates did not necessarily improve with more iterations. In the case of the CQ method, the resolution did not improve significantly after the first iteration. Results for QP and NSHP support indicate that the estimates of the AR parameters converge to the true values, and may then diverge. This phenomenom is not understood and provides a basis for continued study.

Additional areas of research arise from the findings of this thesis. The fast solution of the normal equation via iteration leads to the possibility of following spectral lines of slowly time-varying signals. Because the values of the AR parameters are dependent upon previous values, the previous values could possibly be used to re-initialize the estimates when the random process changes in time. Exploration of this idea would serve as good follow-on study. Another follow-on study is the posible application of iterative methods to the multichannel case, where the AR parameters are in matrix form.

LIST OF REFERENCES

- 1. Jae S. Lim, *Two-Dimensional Signal and Image Processing*, pp. 346-396, Prentice Hall, Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey, 1990.
- 2. Steven M. Kay, Modern Spectral Estimation: Theory and Application, pp. 479-512, Prentice Hall, Englewood, New Jersey, 1988.
- 3. Dan E. Dudgeon and Russell M. Mersereau, Multidimensional Digital Signal Processing, pp. 315-338, Prentice Hall, Englewood, New Jersey, 1984.
- 4. D.H. Johnson, "The application of spectral estimation methods to bearing estimation problems," *Proc. IEEE*, Vol. 70, No. 9, pp. 1018-1028, 1982.
- 5. J.S. Lim and F.U. Dowla, "A new algorithm for high resolution two-dimensional spectral estimation," *IEEE Trans. Acoust., Speech, Signal Processing*, Vol. ASSP-29, No. 6, pp. 284-285, 1981.
- C.W. Therrien and H.T. El-Shaer, "A direct algorithm for computing 2-D AR power spectrum estimates," *IEEE Trans. Acoust., Speech, Signal Processing*, Vol. ASSP-27, No. 11, pp. 1795-1798, 1989.
- 7. J.W. Woods, "Two-dimensional Markov spectral estimation," *IEEE Trans. Inf. Theory*, Vol. IT-22, No. 5, pp. 552-559, 1976.
- 8. Murali Tummala, "New algorithm for solving block matrix equations with applications in 2-D AR spectral estimation," *IEEE Trans. Acoust., Speech, Signal Processing*, Vol. ASSP-39, No. 3, 1991.(To appear)
- 9. Murali Tummala, "Efficient iterative methods for FIR least squares identification," *IEEE Trans. Acoust., Speech, Signal Processing*, Vol. ASSP-38, No. 5, pp. 887-890, 1990.
- 10. L.B. Jackson and H.C. Chien, "Frequency and bearing estimation by twodimensional linear prediction," *Proc. IEEE Int. Conf. Acoust., Speech, Signal Processing*, pp. 665-668, Washington, D.C., 1979.

INITIAL DISTRIBUTION LIST

٤

		No. Copies
1.	Defense Technical Information Center Cameron Station Alexandria, Virginia 22304-6145	2
2.	Library, Code 0142 Naval Postgraduate School Monterey, California 93943-5002	2
3.	Department Chairman, Code EC Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering Naval Postgraduate School Monterey, California 93943-5000	1
4.	Professor C. W. Therrien, Code EC/Ti Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering Naval Postgraduate School Monterey, California 93943-5000	4
5.	Professor M. Tummala, Code EC/Tu Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering Naval Postgraduate School Monterey, California 93943-5000	4
6.	Dr. R.N. Madan Code 1114 Office of Naval Research 800 N. Quincy Street Arlington, Virginia 22217-5000	I
7.	LT Roderick C. Wester Code 300 U.S. Naval Ship Repair Facility FPO San Francisco, California 96630-1400	2